
 
 
 
 

Licensing Urgency Sub-Committee 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 7 May 2021 

Time: 2.00pm 

Venue Virtual 
 
Note: in response to current Government Regulations this meeting 
is being held as a virtual meeting for councillors and accessible via 
Teams. Public speaking and engagement opportunities will be 
made available. 
 
The meeting will also be webcast live to the internet. 

Members: Councillors: Deane (Chair), O'Quinn and Simson 

Contact: Mark Wall 
Head of Democratic Services 
01273 291006 
mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through 
ModernGov: iOS/Windows/Android 
 

This agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 
 

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/modgov/9nblggh0c7s7#activetab=pivot:overviewtab
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB


AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 

 

1 PROCEDURAL MATTERS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to 
attend a meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political 
Group may attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b)  Declarations of Interest: 

(a)  Disclosable pecuniary interests; 
(b)  Any other interests required to be registered under the local 
code; 
(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on 

the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare 
(i)  the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii)  the nature of the interest; and 
(iii)  whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 

 

 

2 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT  

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public.  
 

3 REMOTE LICENSING PANELS - LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS 5 - 8 

 Report of the Executive Lead Officer for Strategy, Governance & Law.  

 Contact Officer: Elizabeth Culbert Tel: 01273 291515  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 



 

ACCESS NOTICE 
In response to the current situation with Covid-19 and the easing of Regulations, this 
Committee meeting will be held virtually via Teams and web cast simultaneously.   
 
The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made on 
the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised 
can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the day before the meeting and they must relate to the item on the agenda for this 
urgency sub-committee meeting. 
 
For those members of the public wishing to actively take part in the meeting a link will be 
emailed so that they can join the meeting. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website.  At the 
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  You 
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.  
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy. 
 
Therefore, by joining the meeting via the link provided you are deemed to be consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for the purpose of 
web casting and/or Member training.  If members of the public do not wish to have their 
image captured, they should ensure they do not use the skype video facility and provide a 
static image. 
 

FURTHER INFORMATION 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact , (01273 291006, email 
mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 

Date of Publication – 06 May 2021 
 

 

     

     

mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk




LICENSING URGENCY SUB-
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 3 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Remote Licensing Panel Meetings – Licensing Act 
2003 functions 

Date of Meeting: 7 May 2021 

Report of: Executive Lead Strategy Governance and Law 

Contact Officer: Name: Elizabeth Culbert Tel: 01273 291515 

 Email: Elizabeth.culbert@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
By reason of the special circumstances, and in accordance with section 100B(4)(b) of 
the 1972 Act, the Chair of the meeting has been consulted and is of the opinion that this 
item should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency for the following 
reason. 
 
A decision is required before the next Licensing Panel meeting on 12th May 2021. 
 
Note:  The special circumstances for non-compliance with Council Procedure Rule 3, 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 5 and Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended), (items not considered unless the agenda is 
open to inspection at least five days in advance of the meeting) were that an 
urgent decision is required to clarify the remote meeting arrangements. 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The report sets out the position in relation to the powers of the Licensing 

Committee to make its own arrangements in relation to the conduct of Licensing 
Panels convened under the Licensing Act 2003 (Licensing Panels). 

 
1.2 The report proposes that Licensing Panels continue to take place remotely for a 

period up to the end of July 2021 in order to reduce the risk of transmission of 
Covid19 and to keep to a minimum the number of face to face meetings that take 
place during this period. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Urgency Sub-Committee agrees that Licensing Panels convened under 

the Licensing Act 2003 should continue to meet remotely from 7th May 2021 until 
the end of July 2021. 

 
2.2 That the Urgency Sub-Committee notes that this position will be kept under 

review in the light of public health advice and Government Guidance. 
 
 
 
 

5



3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Following the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Government introduced 

legislation under the Coronavirus Act 2020 in the form of the Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and 
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2020 (‘the Regulations’). The Regulations authorised local 
authorities to hold “virtual” meetings of the Council and its committees, providing 
members are able to follow the proceedings and the public are able to hear, and 
if possible, view the proceedings 

 
3.2 The Regulations expire on 7th May 2021 and a recent Court decision has 

confirmed that the Council will have to run those of its meetings which are 
governed by the Local Government Act 1972 with members and the public in 
attendance at a physical meeting. 
 

3.3 However, Licensing Panels are established under different legislation (the 
Licensing Act 2003 and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.) 
This means that Licensing Committees are empowered to regulate their own 
procedures and those of its sub-committees (the Licensing Panels). 
 

3.4 In order to ensure clarity going forward, it is proposed that the Licensing 
Committee agree that virtual Licensing Panels convened under the Licensing Act 
2003 will continue for a period of 12 weeks, pending further review and analysis 
of public health and government guidance. This recognises the high number of 
Panel meetings that are required to take place (6 in May 2021) and the need to 
take steps to mitigate the risks of Covid 19 infection by reducing the number of 
face to face meetings at this stage where this is possible. 
 

3.5 As had been the case throughout the pandemic when virtual Licensing Panel 
meetings have been taking place, arrangements will continue to be made for the 
press and public to attend the virtual meeting. In addition, applicants and those 
making representations will be invited to attend remotely. Where this is not 
possible due to connection issues, arrangements will be offered whereby access 
to a computer at Hove Town Hall will be made available. 
 

4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 A high number of Licensing Panels convened under the Licensing Act 2003 are 

due to take place in the coming months, with 6 Panels taking place in May alone. 
The Council is required by law to determine these applications within the 
statutory timeframe.  
 

4.2 The Licensing Committee does have the option of returning to in person 
meetings for these Panel Hearings, requiring attendance in person from elected 
members, the parties and those making representations as well as officers. A risk 
assessment could be undertaken to ensure that safety measures were put in 
place to mitigate against the risk of infection as far as is possible. However, this 
approach would conflict with Government advice to work at home where this is 
possible in order to reduce the amount of face to face contact that is taking place.  

 
 

6



5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 In view of the urgent need to determine the procedure for Licensing Panels in the 

light of other Committees returning to (reduced) face to face meetings public 
consultation has not been possible. However, the proposals ensure that all 
arrangements that are currently in place will continue to enable the public, press 
and all parties to the proceedings to be able to see and hear them and participate 
as appropriate. 

 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 It is lawful for Licensing Panels to continue to take place remotely. This is not the 

case with other Council Committees, regulated by the Local Government Act 
1972, where a recent Court case has made it clear that in person arrangements 
are required to be put in place from 7th May 2021.  
 

6.2 The high volume of Licensing Act Panel meetings and the potentially high 
number of attendees mean that an approach is proposed whereby the Licensing 
Committee exercises it powers to agree its own procedures and to hold remote 
Licensing Act panel hearings for a further period of 12  weeks until the end of 
July 2021 in order to reduce the risk of transmission of Covid19. 

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 There are no additional financial implications arising from the recommendations 

in this report. 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Jeff Coates Date: 05/05/21 
 

Legal Implications: 
 

7.2 Unlike Committee meetings governed by the Local Government Act 1972, 
remote licensing Sub-Committees do not require legislative permission. The 
Licensing Committee can determine its own procedures for its sub-committees 
(hearing panels) pursuant to s 9 Licensing Act 2003. 

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date: 05/05/21 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.3 The Council has a public sector equality duty under s149 of the Equality Act 

2010. In the exercise of its functions the Council must have due regard to the 
need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and those that do not.   
 

7.4 The Council’s public sector equality duty has been considered by officers and the 
proposals of this report have been assessed for their equalities impact. The 
proposals to continue remote meetings for a period of 12 weeks balances the risk 
to health of vulnerable groups against the risk that some who may wish to access 

7



the meetings are not able to due to connectivity issues. There are plans in place 
to mitigate this by offering access to a computer at Hove Town Hall to anyone 
impacted by the application being heard. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.5 There will be less travel to and from the physical location of the meeting if the 

Panels operate remotely during this period.  

8


	Agenda
	3 Remote Licensing Panels - Licensing Act 2003 functions

